UNITED
NATIONS C RC

Convention on the S ERAL
Rights of the Child CRC/ CI SR. 386
3 June 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Fi fteenth session
SUMMARY RECORD COF THE 386t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 29 May 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M ss MASON
CONTENTS

COOPERATI ON W TH OTHER UNI TED NATI ONS BCDI ES, SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND OTHER
COVPETENT BODI ES

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 16807 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

COOPERATI ON W TH OTHER UNI TED NATI ONS BODI ES, SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND OTHER
COVPETENT BODI ES (agenda item 7)

1. The CHAI RPERSON invited the representatives of the bodies and agencies
attending the neeting to nmake statenents.

2. Ms. MARSHALL (Office of the United Nations Hi gh Conm ssioner for
Refugees), said that nore than half of the world' s refugees were children
and that wonen and children together were estimated to account for about

80 per cent of the total. UNHCR publications which she proposed to circul ate
to the menbers of the Cormittee included Refugee Children: Guidelines on
Protection and Care, the chapters of which were based on articles of the
Convention on the Rights of the Child, and Guidelines on Policies and
Procedures in Dealing with Unacconpani ed Children Seeking Asylum which was
targeted at the devel oped world and conprised two sections, one dealing with
children who were found to qualify for asylumand the other with the nore
difficult case of children who did not qualify and whose best interests
requi red special protection

3. The UNHCR Seni or Coordi nator for Refugee Children, who was scheduled to
meet the Committee for discussions after the session, would concentrate on
followup to the Study on the Inpact of Armed Conflict on Children, which had
been prepared by the expert of the Secretary-CGeneral of the United Nations,
Ms. Graca Machel .

4. Interaction with the Cormttee was viewed as nutually beneficial. From
its network of operational field offices UNHCR transmitted information to the
Conmittee on the inplenmentation of the Convention in States parties. It

provi ded a | egal overview of the country, described the situation of refugees
and asyl um seekers, giving separate figures for children, and drew attention
to issues of concern to UNHCR It al so occasionally suggested topics for

di scussion with the State party del egation, for exanple the policy in
Australia of detaining all asylumseekers, including children

5. The information furnished by UNHCR to the Committee was confidential and
shoul d not be shared with the State party inits witten form Mreover,
guestions based on the material should not reveal the source, because UNHCR
field offices operated their own strategies when it cane to raising issues
with the Governnments concerned. UNHCR staff nmenbers who attended the
Committee's sessions reported back to the UNHCR field offices on the

di scussions with State parties and the Conmttee's concludi ng observati ons,
and urged themto use that material to pronote children's rights in the
countries concerned.

6. Ms. OGUN BASSANI (United Nations Children's Fund) said that a UNI CEF

m ssi on statenent issued in January 1996 had stated that UNI CEF shoul d be
guided in its work by the principles and standards contained in the Convention
on the Rights of the Child. A docunent recently approved by UN CEF s
Executive Board, entitled A Review of UNICEF Policies and Strategies on
Children in Need of Special Protection, highlighted areas such as juvenile
justice, sexual exploitation, disability and child | abour, which required




CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 3

i ncreased UNI CEF attention. A follow up docunent outlined a strategy to
protect children fromsuch evils as exploitation, violence, abuse and
abandonnent. A resource guide on reporting to the Comrittee on the Ri ghts of
the Child had been sent to all UNICEF field offices.

7. A nunber of inportant recommendati ons nmade in the Study on the |npact of
Arnmed Conflict on Children were being used as guidelines by UN CEF, whose
Executive Director had recently called for inplenentation of the
recommendation for the establishment of an international crimnal court and a
per manent prosecutor's office to deal with atrocities conmtted agai nst
chi | dren.

8. The Action Plan adopted by the 1996 Wrld Congress agai nst Commerci a
Sexual Exploitation of Children was being used by UNI CEF country offices to
pronote action by CGovernnents and other partners to address that problem

9. UNI CEF organi zed wor kshops and briefings for Governments and NGOs at the
nati onal, subregional and regional levels to assist themin preparing country

reports for the Cormittee. Twelve countries from East and Sout hern Africa had
attended the nost recent workshop held in Swaziland. Children thensel ves had

been given the opportunity to comrent on the draft country report at a

Nati onal Children's Sem nar on the Convention held in Nepal

10. UNI CEF field officers had been encouraged to participate in neetings of
the Comrmittee's pre-sessional working group and in neetings of the Commttee
itself. In some cases, there had been direct followup to the Comrittee's

concl udi ng observations. That had been the case in Nam bia, where technica
assi stance had been provided in the area of juvenile justice. Detailed

gui dance on the preparation of situation analyses relating to the Convention
woul d be devel oped in the com ng nonths.

11. The 1997 I nnocenti G obal Sem nar organi zed by the UNI CEF Internationa
Chil d Devel opment Centre for staff training in Florence would focus on
juvenile justice. The State of the Wirld's Children report would deal with
the right to adequate nutrition. The UNI CEF | npl enentation Handbook for the
Convention on the Rights of the Child would be published by the end of 1997
and should be a useful tool for CGovernnents, NGOs and other bodies.

12. M. PICARD (I nternational Labour Organization), said that |ILO was
interested in inplementation of the Convention in the areas related to its
terms of reference which were covered by international |abour standards. He
drew attention to article 32 of the Convention, which referred to econonic
exploitation of children and which required States parties to have regard to
the rel evant provisions of other international instrunents. The Conmittee
coul d make use of the observations of the ILO bodies nonitoring inplenmentation
by States parties of conventions concerning child | abour when urging
Governnments to ratify international |abour conventions, in particular
Convention No. 138 concerning the M ninmum Age for Adm ssion to Enploynent, and
to ensure stricter application of those already ratified. It was therefore

i mportant to keep the channels of comuni cati on open between the Committee and
the LO Committee of Experts on the Application of Conventions and
Recomendat i ons ( CEACR).



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 4

13. New I LO i nstrunments were schedul ed for adoption in 1998 and 1999. The
Committee had been formally consulted in January 1997 and had given its
observations on the new instrunments in the report on its fourteenth session
Those observations would be transnmitted to and taken into consideration by the
bodi es concer ned.

14. In the case of the nonitoring bodies, the work of the Conmittee on the
Rights of the Child was reflected in the general report published by CEACR
each year and in the observations sent to individual States on the application
of specific ILO conventi ons.

15. In its reports and discussions concerning child | abour the ILO Governing
Body had made increasingly frequent reference in the past two years to the
Conmittee and its recommendations. Tripartite technical neetings al so took
account of the work of the Committee and of the need to establish even closer
links with it. It was also considered inportant to inform Governnents and
enpl oyers' and workers' organizations, through the respective ILO offices, of
t he recomendati ons the Committee had nade to the countries concerned, and in
general to involve both sides of industry in the matter of child | abour and to
oblige themto act.

16. Wth regard to technical cooperation activities, he said that the
objectives of the International Progranme on the Elimnation of Child Labour
(I PEC), which had begun in 1992, were to contribute to the abolition of child
| abour by increasing the capacities of countries to deal with the problem and
to create a worl dwi de novenent to conmbat it. |Its priority target groups were
children in slavery, those working in hazardous enpl oyment and those who

were especially vulnerable, specifically girls and all children under the age
of 12. |IPEC based all its action on the political will and determ nati on of
Governnments to conmbat the exploitation of child | abour in collaboration with
enpl oyers' and enpl oyees' organi zations and NGOs. Fromthe outset countries
were obliged to assunme clear responsibilities through the signing of a

menor andum of under standi ng that set out the programme's objectives and the
context in which it would be executed. Docunmentation relating to |PEC s

mul ti sectoral strategy could be furnished to the Committee.

17. Inits first two years | PEC had inpl enented 155 acti on programes,
chiefly with NGOs; by 1994-1995 t he nunber of programmes had reached 447.
Twenty-six countries were currently participating in the programe, and

anot her 15 were preparing to do so. The nunber of | PEC donors was increasing
steadily: they now included 13 individual States and the European Union

18. Cooperati on between |ILO and the Conmittee had been very positive, but it
was certainly possible to inprove it and to do even nore to achieve their
comon obj ective of protecting the rights of the child.

19. M. ROBINSON (World Health Organization) said that WHO was a technica
agency whose programmes had a direct bearing on the Convention that rel ated
especially to child nortality and norbidity rather than to devel opment. The
Organi zation provided a technical and normative background to activities in
support of national health services, which were carried out partly with
support from WHO but to a larger extent in collaboration with other agencies,
especially UNICEF and, nmore recently, the Wrld Bank




CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 5

20. The WHO activity which had perhaps produced the greatest change in

i nfant and young child nortality had been the inmmunization programe, under

whi ch the organi zation's rol e had concerned the devel opment of technol ogy,
vacci nes, support to vaccine research and strong technical involvenent with
its partners in inplenentation in a |arge nunber of countries. The fact that
nost countries now had imruni zati on progranmes was largely due to the efforts
of UNI CEF. | nmunization coverage throughout the world had risen dramatically,
and had probably been the major health intervention reducing child nortality
in the past 10 or 15 years. There would be further devel opment as work on new
vacci nes and new technol ogi es progressed.

21. In the area of nutrition, WHO s role had been largely of a research and
normative nature; it had been less involved with direct support to countries,
except in respect of breastfeeding where it had provided strong technica
support to ensure that the value of breastfeeding was made known to fanilies
and comunities. The effect breastfeeding had on child survival and life and
on the nother-child bond was i mreasurabl e.

22. The psycho-soci al devel opnent of the child was an area in which WHO had
per haps not done enough, because, while it was fairly easy to measure, there
was at present little that could be done in practical terms. The attitude had
tended to be that if children were kept alive and noderately healthy they had
a fighting chance of enjoying good psycho-social devel opment.

23. The need to control childhood di seases was enphasi zed in the Convention
on the Rights of the Child. WHO had had consi derable success in that area
particularly in controlling diarrhoeal diseases through the devel opnent and

i ntroduction of oral rehydration therapy. As a result, diarrhoeal diseases
were anong the very few mgj or chil dhood di seases, apart from the inmunizabl e
ones, that had shown a decline in the |ast decade.

24. Less successful, however, had been the control of acute respiratory

i nfection, which called for nuch greater involvenment of the different
conmponents of the health system In the past few years WHO, in coll aboration
wi th UNI CEF, had noved away from a technical focus on diarrhoeal diseases and
acute respiratory infection towards what had come to be known as the

i ntegrated managenent of childhood illness. That approach had enabl ed the
organi zation to support countries through technical interventions and, with
its partners, to take a conprehensive | ook at diarrhoeal diseases, acute
respiratory infection, neasles, malaria and other causes of fever,

mal nutrition and other illnesses relevant to child norbidity and nortality.
The result was a programme which focused on five nmajor universal killer
di seases and ot hers which were of inportance to particular countries. It

consi dered what could be done in terns both of antibiotics and vacci nes and
what sort of health service was required to deliver that kind of care and what
action the community had to take in order not only to derive advantage from
the health service but also to prevent and nanage chil dhood illnesses. It was
a very broad programe which was devel oping rapidly in response to grow ng
demand from countri es.

25. WHO, being a technical agency, could achieve nothing wthout very close
col I aboration with funding and technical agencies and with bodies, such as the
Committee on the Rights of the Child, which were able to keep child nortality



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 6

and norbidity issues at the forefront of international concern. One of the
essential elements of the Convention was its provision for nmonitoring, which
touched on health service devel opnent and capacities and on famly and
comunity practices, and furnished a very useful picture of health trends in
i ndi vidual countries. WO was ready to provide technical support in the

noni toring and reporting process, to refine it and nmake it nore focussed, and
to support those countries and groups that needed to react to information
emerging fromthat process.

26. Ms. THEYTAZ- BERGVAN (NGO Group for the Convention on the Rights of the
Chil d) explained that the G oup was a coalition of 41 internationa

non- gover nnent al organi zati ons nost of which enjoyed consultative status with
t he Economi c and Social Council of the United Nations. It had been formed in
1983 as the Informal Ad Hoc NGO Goup for the Drafting of the Convention on
the Rights of the Child. Although children's rights and child welfare were
the primary focus of many of its nenbers, they were in fact a mnority; other
menbers for whomthe rights of the child were one aspect of a w der mandate
were human rights organi zations, religious organi zati ons, educationa
associations and jurists' groups. |Its nmenbers included very few devel opnent
organi zations, but it was hoped that the nmenmbership reflected the breadth of
the Convention itself.

27. The NGO Group received funding fromits nenbers as well as from

United Nations agenci es and donor organizations. Its ainms were to raise

awar eness of the Convention and nake its inplications known; to prompte its
full inplementation; to be an active source of information for the Committee,
concerned United Nations bodies and interested NGOs; to contribute to draw ng
up recomrendati ons, policies and strategies in the fields of work of its
sub-groups; to nmake available to the NGO conmunity information, decisions and
recommendati ons made by the Committee and other concerned United Nations
bodies; and to facilitate the creati on of NGO groupings for the conduct of
joint activities. It had three sub-groups concerned, respectively, with
sexual exploitation, child | abour and refugee children and children in armed
conflict. The Goup's liaison work with the Conmittee was designed to ensure
that the latter received reliable and objective information from NGO sources
in all countries. The Goup also funded the participation of national NGOs at
the Conmittee' s pre-sessional working group neetings.

28. M. FULCI said that the statenment by the representative of ILO had been
especially interesting in view of the active role that organization played in
defending the rights of the child. Referring to the agreenent signed between
t he Bangl adesh Manufacturers Exporters Association, UNICEF, |ILO and the

Gover nment of Bangl adesh, under which children had been released fromtheir
jobs in the garnent industry and had entered non-formal education institutes
specially set up by NGOs, with schol arships to conpensate for |oss of

earni ngs, he asked whether that solution had worked and whether it could be
extended to other sectors in which children worked, in particular those in
whi ch the work was hazardous. He also asked whether the arrangenent coul d be
adapted to other countries where simlar serious child | abour situations
exi st ed.

29. M. PICARD (I nternational Labour Organization) said that the agreenent
referred to, which was an exanple of good inter-agency cooperation, could



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 7

probably be extended to other economic sectors. |LO had recently signed an
agreenent, based on the sane principles, under the auspices of the

i nternational football federation, FIFA, for the production of footballs in a
regi on of Pakistan. As to whether it was feasible to apply the nmethod to al
export sectors, the problemwas that nuch of the work done by children was
contracted out and it was difficult to identify the enterprises that worked
for export. The forthcom ng session of the International Labour Conference
woul d be di scussing the adoption of instrunents dealing with subcontracting
and the issue of child | abour would be considered in that context. As to
whet her agreenents of the kind signed in respect of the Bangl adesh garnent

i ndustry were applicable in other countries, much depended on the politica
will of the Governnments of those countries.

30. Ms. MBO said that she regretted the absence of a representative of
UNESCO, education being such an inportant aspect of the rights of the child.
Country reports had stated that child |l abour in the informal sector was both
nore inportant and nore threatening than in the formal sector, and she woul d
wel comre nore information on ILO s involvenment in the informal sector, where it
seemed to her that little could be done that would help. The representative
of WHO appeared to have been referring in his statenent mainly to younger
children. Country reports, however, seened to suggest that the greater risk
and greater threat was that faced by ol der children, especially adol escents,
in view of the inpact on their health of violence, especially sexual violence,
subst ance abuse, and sexually transmtted di seases and H V/ AIDS. She woul d
wel conme nore information fromthe representative of WHO regardi ng the

i ncreasing health threats to adol escents.

31. M. FULC asked whether |1LO s Bangl adesh progranme was operating
satisfactorily, and how it had been financed. 1In his view, what had been
acconpl i shed i n Bangl adesh shoul d al so be achievable in other countries;

i nternational public opinion should be nmobilized on behalf of working children
t hr oughout the worl d.

32. Ms. OUEDRAOXO requested further information from UNI CEF concerning the
participation of children in the production of country reports. She would
also like to know nore about the training semnars offered by the

I nnocenti Centre, and requested that docunentation concerning them be nmade
available to the Commttee. UNICEF s field training docunents would al so be
of interest to the Committee.

33. She woul d be interested to know how I LO conducted its work in the field,
and in particular how it cooperated with other agencies. That organi zation's
approach seened to her too calm Increasing nunbers of African wonmen had to
work in the informal sector to support their famlies; what neasures were |ILO
taking to renedy that situation?

34. In her view, WHO should strengthen its cooperation not only with the
Committee but with other agencies engaged in field work. Although progress
had been nade in the area of health care, nuch remained to be done. She asked
WHO how it reconciled the need to strengthen its health-care programes wth
the shortage of financial resources.



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 8

35. M. PICARD (I nternational Labour Organization) said that the question of
work in the informal sector was included in the nmandate of I1LO.  The

organi zation's imredi ate task in that regard was to secure adoption of

i nternational rules that would dinmnish the negative consequences of child

| abour. However, it also adm nistered practical programes, anong themthe
International Programme on the Elimnation of Child Labour (IPEC), an
experinmental programme that was currently operating in 26 countries. Plans
were under way to introduce |PEC into Africa; one such operation was in a
preparatory phase in Burkina Faso. The objective of |PEC was not to suppl ant
the responsibility of Governnments and national organizations, but to assist
themin devel oping a national policy which could then be inplenented with the
hel p of 1LO and ot her specialized agencies. Child |labour resulted from
poverty, but poverty also resulted fromchild |abour; the vicious cycle nust
be broken.

36. The agreenent that had been reached in Bangl adesh was only partly
satisfactory. Wen neasures restricting child | abour had been announced,

enpl oyers had pani cked, dism ssing approxi mately 20,000 child enpl oyees
overni ght. There had been extensive nmedia coverage, especially in the

United States of Anmerica, hailing the abolition of child | abour in the

Bangl adesh textile industry. But the dism ssed children had taken to the
streets, where they risked exposure to graver sorts of exploitation. UN CEF
ILO, an Anerican NGO, and owners of Bangl adesh textile factories had
subsequent |y signed an agreenent ained at remedying that problem The
programe | aunched under that agreenment had so far assisted 10,000 children
whi ch did not necessarily suggest that 10,000 nore required assistance. Sone
of the children in question, having grown ol der, could now | egally work under
Bangl adesh | aw. The cost per child assisted was $7.50 per nonth. | PEC was
funded by a nunber of countries, but that particular project in Bangl adesh had
been financed mainly from American sources, with participation by |Ioca
factory owners.

37. At present, nobilizing both donors and public opinion was a relatively
easy task. |LO was, however, increasingly convinced that child |Iabour did not
arise frominternational commercial conpetition, in which children in fact

pl ayed a m nor role, and that view was sure to di scourage donors.

Twenty years before, international bodies had shown no interest whatsoever in
the problem of child |abour

38. M. ROBINSON (World Health Organization) said that WHO adm ni stered an
adol escent health programre, which concentrated, inter alia, on substance
abuse, sexuality, STDs and HIV, as well as on especially vul nerabl e adol escent
groups. He would be glad to provide the Comrittee with detail ed docunentation
on the subject.

39. Maternal nortality was an area of growi ng concern for VHO. |If a wonan
suffered froma condition which would cause her to die in childbirth, only
hospital care could help her. Unfortunately, that type of care was expensive
and not readily accessible. The mpjority of the wonen who experienced
difficulties in |abour and delivery were small, unhealthy wonen with a life
hi story of undernourishnent, which was a broader devel opnent probl em



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 9

40. WHO had recently assessed the situation of children in health-care
facilities who suffered fromconditions fromwhich they would die if referra
services could not be arranged, and had found that 60 per cent of such
children died.

41. He agreed that the Conmittee, and other international foruns, should
informthe world of the dinensions of the problemof child nortality: it was
estimated that 12 million children died each year. Although that nunmber was
slowy falling, the incidence of child nortality had begun to show a

redi stribution in geographical and econonic ternms, with greater concentrations
in Africa and anong the very poor. Developnent and heal th-care resources
shoul d be reallocated so as to benefit those nost in need.

42. The approach of WHO was based on cooperation with other bodies. There
were no WHO country programes as such; the organization provided technica
support to national progranmmes. In recent years, efforts had been made to

bring international donors and national agencies together under a nationa
pl an, so that the funds nmade avail able could be optinmally applied.
Unfortunately, donor objectives rarely included the child who needed care.

43. Ms. MLLER (United Nations Children’s Fund) said that UN CEF had

i nvol ved children in its reporting process for the first time in Nepal. It
was urging its country offices to encourage the participation of children in
the formul ation of reports, with the Nepal ese case study as a nodel

44, The I nnocenti gl obal sem nars had been organized to famliarize UN CEF
officers fromfield offices worldwide with enmerging i ssues. The next sem nar
woul d take place in the com ng autumm and UNI CEF woul d gl adly nake the sem nar
docunents available to the Committee.

45, After describing the training and advisory activities of UN CEF

t hroughout the world, she said that the organi zati on was working closely with
WHO and UNFPA in the area of adol escent health, and in particular on sexua
and reproductive health.

46. Ms. MARSHALL (Ofice of the United Nations Hi gh Commi ssioner for
Refugees) said that all UNHCR field staff participated in a people-oriented
pl anni ng course designed to devel op awareness of the ethnic and cultura
traditions of refugee popul ations, as well as to the problenms of vul nerable
groups within such popul ations, such as wonen and children. Furthernore, al
UNHCR field staff nmade use of Refugee children: Guidelines on protection and
care, a text which was based on the principles enbodied in the Convention on
the Rights of the Child. 1In conjunction with other agencies, UNHCR had
recently | aunched pilot programres in human rights education, education for
peace, and conflict-resolution, sone for children and others for adults.

47. She agreed that coordi nati on anong agencies in the field should be
strengthened. In fact, national and international NGOs, which received
fundi ng from UNHCR and ot her bodi es, carried out nost of the work that was
done in refugee canps.

48. Ms. CH N YANG (I nternational Programe on the Elimination of Child
Labour) said that when a Government signed a nmenorandum of understanding with




CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 10

| PEC, a national steering commttee was then established, conposed of
representatives of the Government, of enployers' and workers' organizations,
and of NGOs. |Its role was to establish, at the national policy level, the

i ssues of greatest concern

49. The programre pl aced enphasis on the rehabilitation of street children

t hrough education. It was also concentrating on collection and anal ysis of
statistical data in the area of child labour in the informal sector. She
agreed that, in an area such as the elimnation of child | abour, the politica
will of a country could be changed. |PEC was engaged in efforts to raise

awar eness t hroughout society, through such grass-roots organi zati ons as worker
and enpl oyer unions.

50. Ms. MOKHUANE i nqui red whet her WHO consul ted behavi oural scientists in
the matter of the psychosocial devel opment of children, and whether its
educational programres attenpted to raise awareness with regard to
psychosoci al issues affecting children, especially girls. She wuld al so
wel come further information concerning the efforts of WHOw th regard to the
i npact of family and conmunity practices on the health of children and in
particul ar wi shed to know whet her WHO had identified specific areas that
required investigation. Did WHO conduct any nental health programres for
chil dren?

51. M. RABAH said that as a new nenber of the Conmittee, he had sone basic
guestions to raise. Firstly, he asked UNHCR whether its assistance to
refugees was linmted to food and clothing, or also included other itens. He
woul d al so like to know whet her UNHCR al so assisted internally displaced
groups. How did ILO differentiate between working children and street
children, and how did it cooperate with Governments in assisting children in
difficult circunstances? Finally, he would |ike to know how an organi zati on
became an NGO, and how NGOs were enpowered to work with United Nations organs.

52. Ms. SARDENBERG said that the information provided by the representatives
attending the neeting was fundanental in helping the Conmttee to understand
the situation with regard to inplementation of the Convention on the Rights of
the Child in each particular country. Interorganizational cooperation should
not be hanpered by bureaucracy and the existing nonentum nust be further
strengthened. The UNHCR gui delines for protection and care dated from 1994.
Had any UNHCR docunents dealing with the problens of girls been produced since
that date? That was particularly inportant within the framework of the recent
Beijing Conference. It would be useful if the UNICEF representative could
furnish the Conmttee with an up-to-date |ist of publications produced by the
I nnocenti Centre. The country fact sheets produced by WHO provided instant

i nformati on. However, it should be explained how the figures they contained
were to be interpreted.

53. The two issues of child | abour and street children could usefully be
addressed together and all the problens presented by those phenonmena shoul d be
dealt with on a broad nultisectoral basis. Finally, the non-governnenta
organi zations were inportant players within the Commttee. It was inportant
to take advantage of the opportunity for cooperation which they offered.



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 11

54. M. KOLOSOV enphasized the need for a clear and detailed definition of
the child. When presenting their national reports, States parties sonetines
drew attention to the absence of a single definition of the child applying in
relation to marriage, conscription and schooling. Some countries did not
associ ate the age of mgjority with the notion of full |egal capacity.

Mor eover, questions arose in relation to emanci pation. 1t was not clear

whet her persons attaining the age of 18 ceased to be children or were no

| onger protected under international |aw. The concept of limted | ega
capacity was not always understood in relation to children's rights.

55. Anot her term nol ogi cal problemwas the difficulty of defining the

di fferent categories identified as children, adol escents, mnors and
juveniles. Wth regard to child | abour, he wondered whether it was necessary
to elimnate work by all persons under the age of 18. He found the term
“child | abour” inappropriate.

56. Par agraph 24 of the Committee's general guidelines on periodic

reports (CRC/C/58) did not contain a conplete list of all the | egal ages
requiring definition. He believed that there was a general tendency to think
that the term“children” included only persons under the age of 15.

57. Ms. OUEDRAOXO wel comed the contribution made by the non-governnental
organi zations to the Conmittee's work. She asked how coordi nati on anong t hem
was ensured in the field. Wre regular consultative neetings held in
particul ar countries?

58. Ms. MBO associated herself with M. Kolosov's remarks and said that the
time had come to specify what was nmeant by the term“child’”. The Conmittee
was interested not only in individual phenonmena, but also in general trends,
know edge of which would help in determ ning whether there had been an

i nprovenent in the situation of children. Some of the data provided by WHO
were outdated; for exanple, those from Bangl adesh related to the period
1980-1981. More up-to-date informati on would be greatly appreciated.

59. The CHAI RPERSON invited the representatives of United Nations bodi es and
speci al i zed agencies to respond to the questions asked by nmenmbers of the
Conmi ttee.

60. Ms. MLLER (United Nations Children's Fund) said that there was nuch
coordi nati on between the different sectors operating in the field. For
exanpl e, UNI CEF worked in close cooperation with WHO on health issues and with
ILO on child | abour concerns in Bangladesh. It was therefore inportant to
deci de how the different sectors could best combine their efforts in the
interest of inplenenting the Convention on the Rights of the Child. The
system of reporting by States parties provided the opportunity for further

i nt erorgani zati onal cooperation. The NGOs had been encouraged to support the
United Nations agencies in their work by assisting in the identification of
priority issues and hel ping Governnents to take action in response to the
Conmittee's recommendati ons.

61. In the past, UNICEF' s field offices had provided information mainly in
relation to small children. Now, however, they were instructed to furnish
i nformation on children of all ages, i.e. up to the age of 18. Previously,



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 12

health nmatters had been devoted to those under five and educational issues to
primary school children. Increasingly, the situation of older children was
bei ng exam ned.

62. M. ROBINSON (World Health Organi zation) said that the problens that had
ari sen had been concerned, not w th neasuring psychosoci al devel opnment, but
rather with deciding what to do about it. That was the continuing task of the
soci al scientists who were seeking to inprove the situation of children. 1In
that area, close cooperation with UNI CEF was essenti al

63. On the question of community and famly practices, he said that WHO s
wor k was focused mainly on snaller children, because the major concern was the
factors that caused the highest rates of nortality and physical norbidity.
However, with the advent of H'V, the work was being extended to ol der age

gr oups.

64. It was clear that the | evel of understanding of data provided by WHO
shoul d be such that people could benefit fromit. He acknow edged that the
data furnished by WHO were often not current. However, as an

i ntergovernmental organization, WHO coul d di scuss but could not publish
information originating froman NGO source which conflicted with that provided
by a national Governnent.

65. Ms. MARSHALL (Office of the United Nations Hi gh Conmi ssioner for
Refugees) said that UNHCR had a dual mandate. |t was responsible both for
providing international protection for refugees and for finding durable
solutions to their problens. Its legal mandate referred to refugees but not
to internally displaced persons. However, in specific situations work was
undertaken on behalf of groups in the latter category. Problens arose where
refugees returning to their country of origin lived in the sanme areas as
internally displaced persons.

66. UNHCR di d not only provide food and shelter. It protected the basic
human rights of refugees by providing basic nedical care, special assistance
to wonen and children and | egal documentation so that refugees could live in
their country of asylum

67. The Hi gh Commi ssioner was very concerned with the prevention of refugee
flows. UNHCR s work was being extended to include assistance to refugees
after their return home and hel ping countries to ensure that they had the
necessary resources to deal with the problenms faced by returnees. Such
capacity building amobunted to devel opnment work and was often carried out in
conjunction with UNDP and ot her agencies.

68. Wth regard to the publication of material concerning girls, she said
t hat documentati on had been produced by UNHCR on reproductive health for
wonen, fermale genital mutilation and guidelines on sexual violence.

69. Coordi nation of activities between UNHCR and the other agenci es depended
on the particular countries where operations were taking place. UNHCR s
Seni or Coordi nator for Refugee Children was especially concerned about the

i ssue of the definition of the child and about the different problens of

adol escence.



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 13

70. M. PICARD (I nternational Labour Organization) said that there was no
uni versally accepted definition of child |abour. However, on the basis of the
exi sting international instruments, it could be defined as work done by a
person who had not reached the m ni mum age set by |aw, whatever that person's
prof essi onal status, which was |ikely to harmthe physical and nenta

devel opnent of the person concerned.

71. All children could be said to work when at school, although such work
was not imedi ately productive. The international instruments did not ban al
wor k by young people. The pivotal age was 15 years. There was also the

possibility of light work for those between the ages of 12 and 13. In
devel opi ng countries children could work fromthe age of 14 and the m ni num
age for dangerous work was 18 years. |In other words, there was a series of

m ni mum ages, depending on the work undertaken

72. A distinction nmight be nade between child | abour and normal famly
duties. Such duties were not yet covered by the ILO Conventions or the
Convention on the Rights of the Child. It was necessary to define them
however, and the concept of such obligations should be further devel oped.

A third area was that of small occasional tasks done by children, such as
babysitting and delivering mlk and newspapers. Such activities were unlikely
to be covered by international instrunents.

73. A definition of the child nust be achieved in ternms of different ages
for different activities, be they work or education

74. It was to be hoped that the Cormittee would participate in the
Conference to be held in Gslo in 1998, at which such matters could be
considered. The views of the NGOs concerning future international instrunments
shoul d be ascertai ned.

75. Regul ar consultation took place anong the different bodies working in
the field and, increasingly, such consultation took account of the Convention
on the Rights of the Child. For exanple, a neeting held in Abidjan with

UNI CEF and NGO partici pati on had exam ned how the activities of the various
agenci es coul d be organi zed around the Convention

76. Ms. THEYTAZ- BERGVAN (NGO Group for the Convention on the Rights of the
Child) said that there were three prerequisites for menbership of the NGO
Group. It was necessary to be an international non-governmental organization
in principle to have consultative status with the Econom ¢ and Soci al Counci
of the United Nations, and to be directly involved in the inplenentation of

t he Convention. Those criteria were too vague, however, and were currently
under review.

77. Further coordination with United Nations agencies was essential. NGO
subgroups served as focal points in the main areas of concern; for exanple,

i ndi vi dual group nenbers focused on girl children and poverty. Also, joint
statements were nade by the Group to United Nations bodies. They dealt nore
with mechanisnms than with the situation prevailing in individual countries.
Recent statenents included one of support for the draft optional protocol on
i nvol venent of children in arnmed conflict and one of opposition to the draft
optional protocol on sexual exploitation



CRC/ C/ SR. 386
page 14

78. The CHAI RPERSON said that |links with other bodies had been instituted
since the Conmmittee' s establishnment, because of the provision for such
cooperation in article 45 of the Convention and al so because of the interest
of menmbers of those bodies. Although in certain countries the concept of
coordi nation of activities was new, the frequent requests for such

coordi nation from many countries and organi zati ons augured well for the
future.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




